
 
 If you require further information, please contact: Derek Morgan 

Telephone (01344) 352044 
E-mail: derek.morgan@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 

TUESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
 
TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
 

 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Joint Waste Disposal Board on Tuesday 
22 September 2009 at 9.30 am in the Downstairs Meeting Room - Civic Amenity 
Centre, Longshot Lane, Bracknell.  An agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf. 

 
 Mark Moon 
 Project Director 
 
 
 

Members of the Joint Waste Disposal Board 
 

Bracknell Forest Council: Councillor Mrs D Hayes 
 Councillor McCracken 

 
Reading Borough Council: Councillor D Edwards 
 Councillor P Gittings 

 
Wokingham Borough Council: Councillor R Stanton 
 Councillor S Weeks 

 
 
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
 

If you hear the alarm: 
 

1 Leave the building immediately 
2 Follow the green signs 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so 
 

 



 

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
Tuesday 22 September 2009 (9.30 am) 

Downstairs Meeting Room - Civic Amenity Centre, Longshot Lane, Bracknell. 
 

AGENDA 
 
 Page No 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

2. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN   

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 Members are required to declare any personal or prejudicial interests 
and the nature of that interest, in respect of any matter to be 
considered at this meeting.  
 

 

5. MINUTES OF THE JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD - 23 JULY 
2009  

1 - 4 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Joint Waste Disposal 
Board held on 23 July 2009.  
 

 

6. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 To notify the Board of any items authorised by the Chairman on the 
grounds of urgency.  
 

 

7. PROJECT UPDATE  5 - 8 

 To inform the Board of progress since its last meeting on 23 July 2009.  
 

 

8. LATS POLICY   

 Oliver Burt will be making a brief presentation on the development of a 
LATS policy.  
 

 

9. WASTE ACCEPTANCE POLICY  9 - 20 

 To seek approval from the Board for a Waste Acceptance Policy to 
cover both Household Waste Recycling Centres.  
 

 

10. WORK PROGRAMME  21 - 24 

 To advise the Board of the proposed work programme for the Joint 
Waste Disposal Board and need to agree a schedule of meetings for 
the coming year.  
 

 



 

 

11. MEETING DATES   

 The Board is invited to approve the dates and times of future meetings, 
with the following dates suggested: 
 
Tuesday 10 December 2009 
Thursday 11 March 2010 
Tuesday 29 June 2010 
Tuesday 21 September 2010 (AGM) 
Tuesday 21 December 2010 
Tuesday 22 March 2011  
 

 

12. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   

 To consider the following motion: 
 
That pursuant to Regulation 21 of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Access to Information) Regulations 2000 and having 
regard to the public interest, members of the public and press be 
excluded from the meeting for the consideration of item 13 which 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information under the following 
category of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972: 
 
(3) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person.  
 

 

Reports Containing Exempt Information 

13. SMALLMEAD MRF PROPOSAL  27 - 34 

 To inform Joint Waste Disposal Board Members of the details of the 
proposal by WRG to receive and process third party recyclables at the 
Smallmead MRF.  
 

 

14. RE3 RISK REGISTER  35 - 36 

 To note the updated project risk register.  
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
23 JULY 2009 
(5.00  - 7.15 pm) 

 
Present: Bracknell Forest Council 

Councillors Stanton, Weeks, Mrs Hayes, McCracken, Edwards and 
Gittings 
Steve Loudoun, Chief Officer: Environment and Public Protection 
Janet Dowlman, Waste and Recycling Manager 

 
Present: Reading Borough Council 

Councillors Mrs Edwards and Gittings 
Kevin Holyer, Head of Environment and Consumer Affairs 
Oliver Burt, re3 Project Manager 
Peter Butler, Streetcare Manager 
Dave Fisher, Finance Officer   
Graham Hunt, Streetcare Manager 

 
Present: Wokingham Borough Council 

Councillors Stanton (Chairman) and Weeks 
Mark Moon, re3 Project Director 
 

 
Also present:  

 Tim Smith, Communications Consultant  
 
 

28. Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

29. Minutes of the Meeting of the Joint Waste Disposal Board  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Joint Waste Disposal Board held on 18 March 
2009 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
Matters Arising 
 
Minute 22: Joint Working Agreement 
 
The Board noted that due to some additional minor changes required to the Joint 
Working Agreement, the relevant Executive authority for each of the three authorities 
would be agreeing the changes at the meeting on 18 March 2009, and the additional 
changes currently being considered, following the next Board meeting in September 
2009. 
 
 

30. Urgent Items of Business  
 
The Chairman gave notice that he had agreed to the addition of two urgent items of 
business to the agenda for the meeting.  The items required consideration by the 
Board in order for business to proceed urgently following the meeting. 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

1



 

31. Letter from West Berkshire - Use of the Smallmead Household Waste Recycling 
Centre  
 
Following receipt of a letter from West Berkshire Council regarding their use of the 
Smallmead Household Waste Recycling Centre the Board agreed that firm proposals 
were needed from West Berkshire before negotiations would continue.  An update on 
this issue would be brought to Board at its meeting in September 2009. 
 
 

32. Proposal from the Waste Recycling Group  
 
The Board was advised that a proposal had been brought to the Board from the 
Waste Recycling Group regarding the demand for use of the facilities at Smallmead 
House Waste Recycling Centre. The Board agreed that further investigation into the 
technical, financial and legal implications of this proposal was required before any 
decision could be made. 
 
The Board had some concerns at the way this proposal had been made and that in 
asking for advice on the legal and financial issues of this proposal, the Board stated 
that it would any such proposals in the future to made in better time frames and 
provide the full details to the Board at the first contact to help in the decision making. 
 
 

33. Joint Waste Disposal Board - Project Update  
 
The Board received a report which provided an update on project activities since the 
last meeting on 18 March 2009.  The Project Manager highlighted the following: 
 

(i) Construction work at Longshot Lane was complete and the site had 
reopened to residents on 13 July 2009 and lots of positive feedback 
had already been received regarding the site. 

(ii) The potential use of Automatic Number Plate Recognition systems at 
Longshot Lane and Smallmead was being investigated to capture 
management information such as the numbers of visitors and the time 
spent on the sites.  It was important that if these systems were to be 
used residents using the sites were made aware of this and the 
reasons for it. 

(iii) In terms of the 2009/10 Waste PFI Outturn Projection the figures 
presented indicated a sizeable underspend, although the figures would 
be recalculated to take account of any actual tonnages.  The Board 
noted that the project had cost the councils within 0.01% of what was 
estimated. 

(iv) An outstanding item which would be presented to the Board at its 
meeting in September would be the proposal for the reporting of 
performance information to reflect the equitable split of all three 
councils’ tonnage to the Lakeside Energy From Waste site. 

 
RESOLVED that progress made since the last meeting on 18 March 2009 be noted. 
 
 

34. Joint Waste Disposal Board - Communications Plan and Events for 2009  
 
The Board considered a report outlining the proposed re3 Communications Plan for 
2009 which aimed to maximise understanding and recognition of the re3 partnership, 
raise its profile, promote waste minimisation and the current recycling messages and 
provide tools to officers and Members of the Council to promote re3. 

2



 

 
To date there had been an opening ceremony for the Smallmead facility, good media 
coverage of re3 events and plans for an opening ceremony at Longshot Lane later in 
the summer, and opportunities would be identified for entering local government and 
environmental awards. 
  
The Board was keen that the Plan focussed on the benefits that residents received 
because of the Partnership, and noted that members in all Councils could play a part 
in the promotion of re3. 
 
 

35. Joint Waste Disposal Board - Joint Waste Authorities  
 
The Board received an update on the proposal to establish a Joint Waste Authority.  
The creation of a Joint Waste Authority aimed to bring facilities and freedom to help 
the re3 councils to work effectively and achieve service improvements and to share 
common burdens.   
 
Following an initial expression of interest by the Board, further advice was received 
from the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) on the 
consultation process required to form a Joint Waste Authority.  The suggested 
process was a longer consultation involving residents’ views at every stage and 
although consistent with re3’s desires, it was considered that the additional time and 
resource was not currently available to take the consultation forward at this time.  
However, the idea of a Joint Waste Authority and other options for advanced 
partnership working would continue to be explored and considered by the Board. 
 
RESOLVED that 

 
(i) a letter be sent to the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

confirming the decision not to progress with an application to create a Joint 
Waste Authority for re3 councils. 
 

(ii) it be noted that in the event that the situation changed, a further report would 
be brought back to allow this issue to be reconsidered. 

 
 

36. Exclusion of Public and Press  
 
RESOLVED that pursuant to Regulation 21 of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements)(Access to Information) Regulations 2000 and having regard to the 
public interest, members of the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
consideration of item 10 which involved the likely disclosure of exempt information 
under the following category of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972: 
 
(3) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 

person. 
 
 

37. Re3 Risk Register  
 
The Board noted the exempt information detailed in the risk register. 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

3



This page is intentionally left blank

4



TO: JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
 22 SEPTEMBER 2009 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD - PROJECT UPDATE 
(Report by the Project Director) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform the Joint Waste Disposal Board of progress 

since its last meeting on 23rd July 2009. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 To note progress made since the last meeting on 23rd July 2009. 
 
2.2 That Members indicate whether they would like Officers to investigate and 

provide costings for the application of council logo’s to the partnership’s bulk 
haulage vehicles. 

 
3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Joint Working Agreement 
 
3.1 At the September 2008 Joint Waste Disposal Board meeting, Members approved 

some amendments to the Joint Working Agreement between the councils. 
 
3.2 The amendments have been reviewed by the BFBC Legal Services Team and 

Officers are scheduling the amendments into the appropriate programme for approval 
by each of the councils. 

 
Finance and Performance 

 
3.3 Officers have previously reported on the difficulties being experienced by WRG in 

reconciling information from the weighbridge at Smallmead with their corporate 
system. The difficulties resulted in tonnage data for the first quarter of 2009/10 being 
reported late by WRG.  

 
3.4 At the time of writing this report, Officers are still working on the information from 

WRG and it is therefore intended that the specific financial and performance 
information will be tabled at the Joint Waste Disposal Board Meeting on September 
22nd.  

  
Risk Register 

 
3.5 The councils Management Team have developed a Risk Register to identify and plan 

the management of areas of risk associated with the PFI contract. 
 
3.6 The Risk Register is detailed as item 13 on this agenda. There are no newly 

identified risks or changes to the risk ratings of existing entries. The mitigations have 
been updated. 

 

Agenda Item 7

5



Lakeside 
 
3.7 Requests from the operators of Lakeside for deliveries of waste from the re3 councils 

remain intermittent but commissioning of the EfW facility is continuing. 
 
3.8 The re3 councils had hoped to be able to derive around 85% of the waste intended 

for EfW from Longshot Lane in Bracknell. Longshot Lane receives waste from 
Bracknell Forest and Wokingham Borough Councils only. That presents the 
partnership with a performance reporting problem in that Reading Borough Council 
will appear to be diverting very little from landfill in comparison with Bracknell Forest 
and Wokingham Borough Councils despite all three of them paying for their ‘fair’ 
share of the total EfW cost. 

 
3.9 It was hoped that one of the aspects of creating a Joint Waste Authority (the pooling 

of targets) would facilitate a solution to this issue. Since we are now not pursuing, for 
the time being, an application to form a Joint Waste Authority, it will not help us with 
this issue. 

 
3.10 Officers have asked WRG to assess the cost of hauling the Reading Borough Council 

waste from Smallmead in Reading to Lakeside EfW. This will result in more waste 
from Longshot Lane being transported to Sutton Courtenay Landfill but will at least 
result in an equitable split of the tonnage to EfW for each council. WRG feel that 
there may be some operational issues in terms of the separation of waste of waste 
for EfW and landfill within the busy transfer station at Smallmead 

 
3.11 Officers have made contact with DEFRA to enquire, again, about the potential for 

some form of auditable solution which does not require the physical movement of 
waste. 

 
Proposed Sutton Courtenay Energy from Waste Facility 

 
3.12 Officers were recently contacted by the Berkshire Joint Strategic Planning Unit 

(JSPU) in relation to the receipt, by Oxfordshire County Council, of a request to 
change the planning application for an Energy from Waste facility. 

 
3.13 The facility is proposed by WRG and they were applying to Oxfordshire County 

Council to remove the possibility of waste being delivered by Berkshire councils from 
the planning application. 

 
3.14 The re3 councils were concerned that the change of application for the EfW facility 

may have had implications for their use of the Sutton Courtenay landfill and 
composting facilities, operated by WRG. 

 
3.15 Oxfordshire County Council have, via the JSPU, confirmed that the existing 

arrangements for the re3 councils will remain unchanged by the change in application 
for an EfW facility at Sutton Courtenay. The change of application will, however, 
mean that the re3 councils would not be able to use the proposed WRG EfW facility 
for any future reason or as a contingency. 

 
Vehicle Livery 

 
3.16 The councils have been considering ways in which their partnership with each other 

and the contractual association with WRG can be communicated to residents. 
 

6



3.17 We wish to promote the understanding amongst residents and stakeholders that re3 
is a representation of the councils and that services delivered under the re3 banner 
are done so by the councils, or organisations contracted by the councils, for residents 
of Bracknell Forest, Reading and Wokingham.  

 
3.18 If we can achieve that sort of recognition, it will inform residents and have a positive 

effect on the contractual relationship between the councils and WRG as contractor. 
 
3.19 One way of articulating the message is via the vehicles which the councils operate 

and also those used by WRG in the delivery of the contract.  
 
3.20 The vehicles can be a powerful tool in communicating direct messages (e.g. ‘please 

recycle’) and slightly more indirect messages (e.g. ‘these councils are working 
together’).  

 
3.21 Reading Borough Council is in the process of updating the visuals on the side of its 

fleet of refuse freighters. The vehicles use a system which allows visuals to be 
replaced relatively easily during the life of the vehicle.  

 
3.22 There are no cost implications at this time. It is hoped that the other partner councils 

will consider a similar system prior to the replacement of collection vehicles as 
appropriate 

 
3.23 At the same time, WRG are procuring a vehicle to carry out the emptying of bottle 

banks across the re3 area. It is proposed that this vehicle include the three council 
logo’s and that of WRG. 

 
3.24 There is an opportunity for the retrospective application of the partnership logo’s to 

the bulk haulage vehicles. These vehicles predominantly travel between Longshot 
Lane and Smallmead and between Smallmead and Sutton Courtenay (along the M4 
and A34). If Members so desire, Officers will investigate this opportunity further – 
including any cost implications. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Joint Working Agreement Report and Appendix, September 2008 
 
CONTACTS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
 
Mark Moon, Project Director  
0118 974 6308 
Mark.moon@wokingham.gov.uk 
 
Oliver Burt, Project Manager 
0118 939 9990 
oliver.burt@reading.gov.uk 
 
 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

TO: JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
 22 SEPTEMBER 2009 
___________________________________________________________________________  

 
JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD – WASTE ACCEPTANCE POLICY 

(Report by the Project Director) 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval from the Joint Waste Disposal Board for a 

Waste Acceptance Policy to cover both Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC). 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That, subject to any amendments they may wish to make, Members approve the 

limits proposed (as detailed in the appended table). 
 
2.2 That Members approve the proposed date upon which the Policy will commence. 
 
 
3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

Policy 
 
3.1 It is both good, and common, practice for Waste Disposal Authorities to have a published 

Policy on the types and amounts of household waste that can be accepted at the 
HWRCs. This helps both the contractor and the councils to manage the HWRCs, gives 
guidance to residents on what can be taken to the sites and defines acceptable 
quantities.  

 
3.2 The limits, described in the appended table, have been arrived at following discussions 

between WRG, as operators of the sites, and the councils. 
 
3.3 In most cases, they are unlikely to cause any inconvenience but represent an upper 

ceiling on the amount of waste that can be deposited. 
 
3.4 In addition to the limits on materials, the proposed Policy also includes the closure of the 

height barriers at both sites in accordance with the PFI contract. 
 
3.5 It is proposed that the Policy be put in place from 1st December 2009. 
 
3.6 A review of the Policy will be included in the 2009/10 Work Programme for the Joint 

Waste Disposal Board (subject to agreement) in order that Members have an opportunity 
to consider the success of the policy. 

 
Principle 

 
3.7 Both operationally, to ensure that services remain available to residents, and in terms of 

overall costs, it is a useful exercise to agree and communicate the limits upon certain 
wastes that can be deposited by householders upon visiting the HWRC’s at Smallmead 
and Longshot Lane. 

 

Agenda Item 9

9



 

 

3.8 Officers have sought, in liaison with the contractor, to reach a position which serves to 
discourage traders from abusing the sites whilst still retaining a practical and pragmatic 
position on the receipt of these wastes from household sources. 

 
3.9 The Environmental Protection Act (1990) places upon waste disposal authorities a duty 

to provide facilities for the receipt of household waste from householders. The 
construction and operation of the two HWRC’s is a significant element of the joint waste 
PFI and addresses the compliance, by the three councils, of the aforementioned duty, 

 
3.10 The ingress of trade waste to the HWRC presents councils with a problem. Whilst 

wishing to support local businesses, the cost of receiving and disposing of ‘trade waste’ 
is an additional financial burden which is not supported by a duty upon the councils. 
When trade waste is deposited as household waste it adds to the overall cost of waste 
disposal and is therefore an additional element within council tax. 

 
3.11 Because of the way in which the councils share performance data and costs for the 

HWRC’s, it is important that there are equal conditions of access. If traders are directly or 
indirectly encouraged to visit one of the sites, there will be performance and financial 
implications to the councils contributing to that site. 

 
3.12 Equally, an influx of traders at one of the sites will also affect the turnaround time for 

other, household, visitors.     
 
3.13 The development of the new Smallmead facility was been carried-out with the specific 

intention of giving local traders a separate service from that offered to householders – 
similar to that which has been successful for years at Longshot Lane. 

 
3.14 The limits proposed are one way of controlling the ingress of trade waste to the public 

(household focussed) element of the Smallmead and Longshot Lane facilities because 
they are set at levels which are more likely to match household, or DIY, requirements 
rather than the repeated requirements of a trader. 

 
3.15 Both the councils and the contractor will investigate additional ways in which 

householders bringing household waste and traders bringing waste derived in the course 
of their business can be accommodated and served at the two HWRC’s.  

 
Publicity 

 
3.16 It will be important to ensure that all parties, both the councils and contractor, are 

coordinated in publicising the limits.  
 
3.17 This has been successfully achieved in the past via the councils’ websites but the 

councils will also need to utilise other sources of information for residents and patrons 
such as signage and leaflets. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 
 

10



 

 

CONTACTS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
 
Mark Moon, Project Director  
0118 974 6308 
Mark.moon@wokingham.gov.uk 
 
Oliver Burt, Project Manager 
0118 939 9990 
oliver.burt@reading.gov.uk 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 W
A
S
T
E
 A
C
C
E
P
T
A
N
C
E
 P
O
L
IC
Y
 F
O
R
 R
E
3
 P
A
R
T
N
E
R
S
H
IP
 A
R
E
A
 H
W
R
C
’S
 

  

 
P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 P
o
li
c
y
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
/ 
P
o
li
c
ie
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il
s
. 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 H
o
u
rs
 

 
 

D
a
y
s
 O
p
e
n
 

7
-d
a
y
s
 a
 w
e
e
k
 

C
lo
s
e
d
 C
h
ri
s
tm
a
s
 D
a
y
  

 

 

O
p
e
n
in
g
 H
o
u
rs
 

S
u
m
m
e
r:
  

1
s
t  
A
p
ri
l 
–
 3
0
th
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

0
8
.0
0
 –
 2
0
.0
0
 

W
in
te
r 

1
s
t  
O
c
to
b
e
r 
–
 3
1
s
t  
M
a
rc
h
 

0
8
.0
0
 –
 1
8
.0
0
 

 

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
it
e
 

O
v
e
rt
 C
C
T
V
 a
n
d
 A
N
P
R
 m

a
y
 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 (
i)
 d
is
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

a
b
u
s
e
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 b
y
 p
a
tr
o
n
s
, 
(i
i)
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 f
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o
f 
u
s
a
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
it
e
s
 

to
 h
e
lp
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

s
u
s
p
e
c
te
d
 t
ra
d
e
rs
 d
e
p
o
s
it
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
w
a
s
te
 f
re
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
. 

W
in
d
s
o
r 
&
 M
a
id
e
n
h
e
a
d
 –
 o
n
ly
 f
o
r 
u
s
e
 b
y
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 m
a
y
 b
e
 a
s
k
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
ro
o
f 

e
.g
. 
d
ri
v
in
g
 l
ic
e
n
c
e
, 
u
ti
lit
y
 b
ill
 e
tc
. 

B
u
c
k
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 w
ill
 s
o
o
n
 b
e
 i
n
s
ta
lli
n
g
 a
 c
a
m
e
ra
 t
o
 r
e
a
d
 r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
. 

N
o
tt
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 C
C
T
V
 a
n
d
 A
N
P
R
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 s
it
e
s
. 

C
u
m
b
ri
a
 C
C
 –
 o
n
ly
 b
y
 p
e
rm

it
. 
3
 t
y
p
e
s
. 
1
) 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
rm

it
 f
o
r 
re
c
y
c
la
b
le
s
. 
N
o
 l
im
it
 

o
n
 t
ri
p
s
. 
2
) 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
w
a
s
te
 p
e
rm

it
 v
a
lid
 f
o
r 
1
 m
o
n
th
 a
n
d
 1
 v
is
it
 p
e
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
. 
 

3
) 
P
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
 p
e
rm

it
 a
llo
w
s
 o
n
 f
o
o
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 C
C
 –
 o
n
ly
 a
c
c
e
p
ts
 w
a
s
te
 f
ro
m
 L
e
e
d
s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 
 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 D
is
c
la
im
e
r 
F
o
rm

 u
s
e
d
 i
f 
s
it
e
 s
ta
ff
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
lie
v
e
 t
h
a
t 

w
a
s
te
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
e
 f
ro
m
 a
 t
ra
d
e
 s
o
u
rc
e
 o
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
A
N
P
R
 i
s
 u
s
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 s
it
e
s
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 h
ig
h
 f
re
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o
f 
u
s
e
. 
N
o
n
-H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 o
n
ly
 u
s
e
 c
a
rs
 o
r 

in
 a
 c
a
r 
to
w
in
g
 a
 t
ra
ile
r 
u
n
d
e
r 
1
.8
m
 l
o
n
g
. 

S
o
m
e
rs
e
t 
C
C
 –
 C
C
T
V
 a
n
d
 A
N
P
R
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

w
a
s
te
. 
If
 i
n
 v
a
n
 e
tc
. 
m
a
y
 b
e
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 s
ig
n
 a
 H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 W

a
s
te
 D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 F
o
rm

. 
N
o
rt
h
 Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 u
s
e
s
 C
C
T
V
 a
n
d
 A
N
P
R
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
. 

 

13



V
e
h
ic
le
 T
y
p
e
s
 

 

A
ll 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

th
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
: 

 
(i
) 

th
e
y
 a
re
 c
a
rr
y
in
g
 

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 

(i
i)
 

th
e
y
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 

(b
o
th
 s
it
e
s
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

h
e
ig
h
t 
b
a
rr
ie
r 
s
e
t 
a
t 
2
.0
m
) 

(i
ii)
 

th
e
y
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 

lic
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

G
ro
s
s
 V
e
h
ic
le
 W

e
ig
h
t 

(G
V
W
) 
lim

it
 o
f 
3
.5
 t
o
n
n
e
s
. 

 R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
is
h
in
g
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 w
a
s
te
 t
o
 

e
it
h
e
r 
s
it
e
 i
n
 e
it
h
e
r 
a
 v
a
n
 o
r 
a
 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
v
e
h
ic
le
 m
u
s
t 
p
re
-b
o
o
k
. 

T
o
 d
o
 t
h
is
 t
h
e
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
a
ll 
re
3
 o
n
 

0
8
0
0
 9
8
8
3
0
2
3
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 8
.3
0
a
m
 a
n
d
 

5
.0
0
p
m
 M
o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 F
ri
d
a
y
. 

 V
a
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 a
re
 

o
n
ly
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
it
e
 f
ro
m
 

7
.3
0
a
m
 t
o
 4
p
m
 f
ro
m
 M
o
n
d
a
y
 t
o
 

F
ri
d
a
y
 o
r 
7
.3
0
a
m
 t
o
 1
2
.3
0
 p
m
 o
n
 

S
a
tu
rd
a
y
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 w
il
l 
b
e
 n
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
v
a
n
s
 a
t 
a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
ti
m
e
 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 p
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 (
fr
e
e
) 
fo
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 

ty
p
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
. 
O
n
e
 p
e
rm

it
 p
e
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 v
a
lid
 f
o
r 
3
 y
e
a
rs
 a
llo
w
in
g
 1
2
 v
is
it
s
 t
o
 a
 

H
W
R
C
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
e
rm

it
s
 m
a
y
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
p
e
c
ia
l 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 (
e
.g
. 
la
rg
e
 g
a
rd
e
n
).
 P
e
rm

it
s
 o
n
ly
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

V
a
n
s
 h
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
le
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 2
 d
a
y
s
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 b
u
t 
m
u
s
t 
s
h
o
w
 h
ir
e
 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 s
it
e
 s
ta
ff
. 

B
la
c
k
p
o
o
l 
–
 p
e
rm

it
 f
o
r 
v
a
n
s
, 
p
ic
k
-u
p
s
 (
c
re
w
 c
a
b
) 
o
r 
to
w
in
g
 a
 t
ra
ile
r.
 P
e
rm

it
s
 

re
n
e
w
e
d
 e
a
c
h
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 v
a
lid
 f
o
r 
1
 v
is
it
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
. 

B
u
c
k
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 A
c
c
e
p
te
d
 :
 p
ri
v
a
te
 c
a
rs
, 
4
x
4
, 
M
P
V
. 
P
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 i
n
 a
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
v
e
h
ic
le
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 f
o
o
t 
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 

w
it
h
 l
a
rg
e
 t
ra
ile
rs
. 

N
o
tt
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 A
c
c
e
p
te
d
 :
 c
a
rs
 o
n
ly
. 
P
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
v
a
n
s
, 
p
ic
k
-u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 t
ra
ile
rs
. 
O
n
ly
 f
o
r 
N
o
tt
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

C
u
m
b
ri
a
 C
C
 –
 P
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 v
a
n
, 
p
ic
k
-u
p
, 
fl
a
tb
e
d
 o
r 
tw
in
 a
x
e
l 
tr
a
ile
r 
(u
p
 

to
 3
m
 l
o
n
g
).
 

C
h
e
s
h
ir
e
 &
 C
h
e
s
te
r  
–
 P
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 v
a
n
, 
p
ic
k
-u
p
, 
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
ty
p
e
 4
x
4
 o
r 

a
 t
ra
ile
r 
o
v
e
r 
1
.5
m
 (
in
te
rn
a
l 
b
o
x
 l
e
n
g
th
).
 T
ra
ile
rs
 o
v
e
r 
3
.5
m
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

B
la
c
k
p
o
o
l 
–
 V
e
h
ic
le
s
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
liv
e
ry
 (
s
ig
n
a
g
e
) 
n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 e
x
c
e
p
t 
h
ir
e
 

v
e
h
ic
le
s
. 
H
ir
e
d
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 p
e
rm

it
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 C
C
 –
 V
a
n
s
 c
a
n
 o
n
ly
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
s
 o
n
 W

e
d
n
e
s
d
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
a
tu
rd
a
y
. 

K
e
n
t 
C
C
 –
 p
ic
k
-u
p
 t
ru
c
k
s
 o
r 
o
p
e
n
 b
a
c
k
e
d
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

D
o
rs
e
t 
C
C
 –
 p
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
ty
p
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
. 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 p
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
v
a
n
s
. 
A
n
y
 v
e
h
ic
le
 w
it
h
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 4
 w
h
e
e
ls
 

a
n
d
 a
n
t 
ti
p
p
e
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
 n
o
t 
a
llo
w
e
d
. 
 

N
o
rt
h
 Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 a
c
c
e
p
ts
 a
ll 
n
o
n
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 4
.9
m
 i
n
 

le
n
g
th
, 
2
.4
m
 i
n
 w
id
th
 a
n
d
 2
.1
m
 i
n
 h
e
ig
h
t.
 O
th
e
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

14



 

T
ra
ile
rs
 

A
c
c
e
p
te
d
 –
 h
o
b
b
y
 t
y
p
e
, 
s
in
g
le
 a
x
le
 

u
p
 t
o
 1
.8
m
 (
6
ft
) 
lo
n
g
 (
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
o
w
 

b
a
r)
. 

 R
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 –
 a
ll 
tr
a
ile
rs
 w
it
h
 d
o
u
b
le
 

a
x
le
 o
r 
o
v
e
r 
1
.8
m
 (
6
ft
) 
lo
n
g
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

w
e
ig
h
b
ri
d
g
e
. 
 

G
e
n
e
ra
lly
 s
h
o
u
ld
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 1
 l
o
a
d
 p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
. 

 

B
u
c
k
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 P
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
la
rg
e
 t
ra
ile
rs
 u
p
 t
o
 1
.8
m
 x
 1
.2
m
 o
r 

2
.4
m
 x
 1
.8
m
 (
s
it
e
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t)
. 

N
o
tt
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 P
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
tr
a
ile
rs
. 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 t
ra
ile
rs
 u
p
 t
o
 1
.8
m
 x
 1
.2
m
 (
a
p
p
ro
x
. 
6
’ 
x
 4
’)
 c
a
rr
y
in
g
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 
T
ra
ile
rs
 1
.8
m
 t
o
 3
m
 i
n
 l
e
n
g
th
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 w
it
h
 a
 P
e
rm

it
 (
1
2
 l
o
a
d
s
 i
n
 o
n
e
 

y
e
a
r)
. 
T
ra
ile
rs
 o
v
e
r 
3
m
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 p
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
tw
in
 a
x
le
 t
ra
ile
rs
 u
p
 t
o
 3
.0
m
 l
o
n
g
. 
T
ra
ile
rs
 

o
v
e
r 
3
m
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
llo
w
e
d
. 
 

N
o
rt
h
 Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 t
ra
ile
rs
 u
p
 t
o
 1
.9
m
 i
n
 l
e
n
g
th
, 
1
.3
m
 i
n
 w
id
th
 a
n
d
 d
e
p
th
 u
p
 t
o
 

0
.7
m
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 o
n
ly
 1
 a
x
le
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 
L
a
rg
e
r 
tr
a
ile
rs
 a
re
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
t 

re
s
tr
ic
te
d
 t
im
e
s
. 

W
e
ig
h
t 
L
im
it
 

3
.5
T
 G
V
W
 (
G
ro
s
s
 V
e
h
ic
le
 W

e
ig
h
t)
 

H
W
R
C
 S
it
e
 L
ic
e
n
c
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
. 
 

 

H
e
ig
h
t 
L
im
it
 

T
h
e
 P
F
I 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ie
s
 t
h
a
t 

h
e
ig
h
t 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
ti
lis
e
d
 a
t 
b
o
th
 

s
it
e
s
. 
2
.0
m
 H
e
ig
h
t 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
te
d
 a
t 
b
o
th
 s
it
e
s
. 

  

W
in
d
s
o
r 
&
 M
a
id
e
n
h
e
a
d
 –
 2
.1
m
 (
6
’ 
9
”)
 

B
u
c
k
s
 C
C
 –
 H
e
ig
h
t 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 b
u
t 
u
s
e
s
 p
e
rm

it
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
tr
ic
t 

v
e
h
ic
le
s
. 

S
lo
u
g
h
 –
 1
.7
5
m
 (
5
’ 
9
”)
. 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
a
rr
ie
rs
 o
r 
v
a
n
s
 a
re
 d
ir
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

w
e
ig
h
b
ri
d
g
e
, 
b
u
t 
n
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
n
 S
u
n
d
a
y
s
. 
 

G
la
s
g
o
w
 C
C
 –
 1
.8
m
 (
b
u
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
is
 h
e
ig
h
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 a
t 
o
th
e
r 
s
it
e
s
) 

E
s
s
e
x
 C
C
 –
 1
.9
5
m
 (
6
’ 
5
”)
. 
H
e
ig
h
t 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 a
re
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 o
n
 S
u
n
d
a
y
 a
ft
e
rn
o
o
n
s
. 
A
ll 

s
it
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
re
a
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 w
h
e
re
 o
v
e
r-
h
e
ig
h
t 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 c
a
n
 u
n
lo
a
d
 a
n
d
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 t
ro
lle
y
s
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

K
e
n
t 
C
C
 –
 1
.8
5
m
 (
6
ft
) 
b
u
t 
s
it
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
re
a
 o
u
ts
id
e
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 w
h
e
re
 o
v
e
r-
h
e
ig
h
t 

v
e
h
ic
le
s
 c
a
n
 u
n
lo
a
d
 w
h
e
re
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 w
h
e
e
lb
a
rr
o
w
s
 a
n
d
 t
ro
lle
y
s
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

S
o
u
th
a
m
p
to
n
 C
C
 –
 1
.7
5
m
 (
5
’ 
9
”)
. 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 l
a
rg
e
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
n
 

c
e
rt
a
in
 d
a
y
s
. 

15



 

A
c
c
e
p
te
d
 M
a
te
ri
a
ls
 

 
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 

W
a
s
te
 

P
a
p
e
r 
&
 c
a
rd
b
o
a
rd
 

Y
e
llo
w
 p
a
g
e
s
 

C
a
n
s
 

G
la
s
s
 b
o
tt
le
s
 &
 j
a
rs
 

P
la
s
ti
c
 b
o
tt
le
s
 

T
e
tr
a
p
a
k
s
 

G
re
e
n
 w
a
s
te
 

C
h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 t
re
e
s
 

F
u
rn
it
u
re
 (
b
e
d
s
, 
s
o
fa
s
) 

G
a
rd
e
n
 f
u
rn
it
u
re
 

C
u
rt
a
in
s
 &
 c
a
rp
e
ts
 

T
V
’s
 

 C
o
o
k
e
rs
 

M
ic
ro
w
a
v
e
 o
v
e
n
s
 

W
a
s
h
in
g
 m

a
c
h
in
e
s
 

E
le
c
tr
ic
a
l 
it
e
m
s
 

C
o
m
p
u
te
rs
 

S
m
a
ll 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 b
a
tt
e
ri
e
s
 

C
lo
th
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
e
s
 

B
o
o
k
s
 

C
D
s
 &
 D
V
D
s
 

C
a
r 
b
a
tt
e
ri
e
s
 

 

A
c
c
e
p
te
d
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
 e
x
h
a
u
s
ti
v
e
 l
is
t 
b
u
t 
g
iv
e
s
 a
 b
ro
a
d
 i
d
e
a
 o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 t
h
a
t 
is
 

a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

16



 

R
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 M
a
te
ri
a
ls
 

 
 

S
o
il 
a
n
d
 R
u
b
b
le
  

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 D
e
m
o
lit
io
n
 

a
n
d
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 W

a
s
te
) 

1
 c
a
r 
b
o
o
t 
lo
a
d
 o
r 
m
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 
6
 

s
a
c
k
s
 p
e
r 
tr
ip
. 

 1
 b
a
th
ro
o
m
 s
u
it
e
 (
1
 b
a
th
, 
1
 s
in
k
, 
1
 

to
ile
t 
b
o
w
l/
c
is
te
rn
) 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 m
a
y
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 s
m
a
ll 
q
u
a
n
ti
ti
e
s
. 
O
n
ly
 

a
c
c
e
p
t 
a
n
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
o
f 
a
 m
e
d
iu
m
-s
iz
e
d
 c
a
r 
b
o
o
t 
fu
ll 
–
 a
p
p
ro
x
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
te
n
ts
 o
f 
6
 x
 

3
0
 l
it
re
 b
a
g
s
. 
S
o
il 
a
n
d
 r
u
b
b
le
 w
a
s
te
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
to
 t
h
e
 s
it
e
 b
a
g
g
e
d
 o
r 
b
o
x
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 q
u
a
n
ti
ty
 r
e
s
tr
ic
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
lie
s
 w
h
a
te
v
e
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 

m
a
te
ri
a
l.
 D
e
p
o
s
it
e
d
 n
o
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 a
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
o
n
c
e
 a
 m
o
n
th
 o
v
e
r 
a
 y
e
a
r 
p
e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
. 

W
in
d
s
o
r 
&
 M
a
id
e
n
h
e
a
d
 –
 1
 c
a
r 
b
o
o
t 
lo
a
d
 (
6
 s
a
c
k
s
) 
p
e
r 
tr
ip
. 
O
n
ly
 1
 t
ri
p
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
 

p
e
rm

it
te
d
. 

N
o
tt
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 S
m
a
ll 
a
m
o
u
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 c
a
rs
 o
n
ly
. 
P
e
rm

it
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
v
a
n
s
, 

p
ic
k
-u
p
s
 a
n
d
 t
ra
ile
rs
. 

S
o
m
e
rs
e
t 
C
C
 –
 l
im
it
e
d
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
n
ly
. 

P
o
rt
s
m
o
u
th
 –
 1
 x
 c
a
r 
b
o
o
t 
o
n
ly
. 

N
o
rt
h
 Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 n
o
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t 
o
f 
2
 f
u
ll 
c
a
r 
b
o
o
t 
lo
a
d
s
 p
e
r 

m
o
n
th
. 

C
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
n
d
e
d
 

A
s
b
e
s
to
s
 f
ro
m
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 o
n
ly
. 

U
p
 t
o
 a
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 
6
 s
h
e
e
ts
 o
f 
n
o
 

g
re
a
te
r 
s
iz
e
 t
h
a
n
 8
’ 
x
 4
’ 
(o
r 

e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t)
. 

 D
o
u
b
le
 w
ra
p
p
e
d
 i
n
 p
la
s
ti
c
. 

 O
n
ly
 2
 t
im
e
s
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 

p
ri
o
r 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 W

R
G
  

i.
e
. 
p
re
-b
o
o
k
in
g
. 

 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 N
o
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 1
5
 s
h
e
e
ts
 o
f 
n
o
 g
re
a
te
r 
s
iz
e
 t
h
a
n
 1
2
0
c
m
 x
 6
0
 

c
m
. 
A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 e
q
u
a
l 
to
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
fr
o
m
 a
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 s
in
g
le
 g
a
ra
g
e
 r
o
o
f.
 

B
u
c
k
s
 C
C
 –
 p
e
rm

it
 (
fr
e
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
) 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
ty
p
e
s
 o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
. 
L
im
it
 i
s
 4
 

s
h
e
e
ts
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
x
. 
8
ft
 b
y
 3
ft
 o
r 
3
 n
o
rm

a
l 
b
in
 b
a
g
s
 p
e
r 
c
a
le
n
d
a
r 
y
e
a
r.
 D
o
u
b
le
 

w
ra
p
p
e
d
 i
n
 p
la
s
ti
c
 a
n
d
 t
a
p
e
d
 u
p
. 

N
o
tt
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 N
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

G
la
s
g
o
w
 C
C
 –
 B
y
 a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 
o
n
ly
. 

D
e
v
o
n
 C
C
 –
 o
n
ly
 a
c
c
e
p
ts
 s
h
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
p
ip
e
s
, 
g
u
tt
e
ri
n
g
 o
r 
fl
u
e
s
 f
ro
m
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

p
re
m
is
e
s
. 
6
 s
m
a
ll 
b
a
g
s
 o
r 
6
 s
h
e
e
ts
 m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 6
’ 
x
 3
’ 
p
e
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 i
n
 a
n
y
 1
2
 

m
o
n
th
s
. 
M
a
x
im
u
m
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
6
’.
 M
u
s
t 
b
e
 p
re
-a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 b
e
fo
re
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
b
y
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 a
n
 A
s
b
e
s
to
s
 D
is
p
o
s
a
l 
F
o
rm

. 
C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
b
a
g
 f
o
r 
a
s
b
e
s
to
s
 f
re
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 (
p
ro
o
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
).
 W

ill
 l
im
it
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
g
iv
e
n
 o
u
t.
 

N
o
rf
o
lk
 C
C
 –
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 r
e
im
b
u
rs
e
 a
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
fo
r 
d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
2
5
0
k
g
 (
1
/4
 

to
n
n
e
) 
o
f 
D
IY
 a
s
b
e
s
to
s
 a
t 
th
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
s
ta
ti
o
n
s
. 
L
im
it
e
d
 t
o
 1
 v
is
it
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r.
 

C
u
m
b
ri
a
 C
C
 –
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 
4
 s
h
e
e
ts
 p
e
r 
d
a
y
. 

17



 

P
la
s
te
rb
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 

G
y
p
s
u
m
-b
a
s
e
d
 

p
ro
d
u
c
ts
. 

U
p
 t
o
 6
 s
h
e
e
ts
 n
o
 g
re
a
te
r 
in
 s
iz
e
 

th
a
n
 8
’ 
x
 4
’ 
(o
r 
e
q
u
iv
a
le
n
t)
 

D
e
v
o
n
 C
C
 –
 o
n
ly
 2
 s
h
e
e
ts
 o
r 
2
 s
m
a
ll 
“r
u
b
b
le
” 
s
a
c
k
s
 o
f 
p
la
s
te
rb
o
a
rd
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 p
e
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
. 

F
ri
d
g
e
s
 &
 F
re
e
z
e
rs
 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 o
n
ly
 w
it
h
 a
 m

a
x
im
u
m
 s
iz
e
 

u
p
 t
o
 “
A
m
e
ri
c
a
n
” 
s
ty
le
 u
p
ri
g
h
t 

fr
id
g
e
s
. 
 

N
o
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
it
e
m
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

s
u
p
e
rm

a
rk
e
t 
s
iz
e
 f
re
e
z
e
rs
 o
r 
c
h
ill
e
r 

c
a
b
in
e
ts
. 
 

 

P
a
in
t 

U
p
 t
o
 1
0
 l
it
re
s
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 N
o
n
-w
a
te
r 
b
a
s
e
d
 p
a
in
ts
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 a
re
a
. 
W
a
te
r 

b
a
s
e
d
 p
a
in
ts
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 w
a
s
te
 b
a
y
. 

E
n
g
in
e
 O
il 

M
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 
1
0
 l
it
re
s
 (
2
 g
a
llo
n
s
) 
p
e
r 

tr
ip
. 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 
1
0
 l
it
re
s
 p
e
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
 p
e
r 
s
ix
 m

o
n
th
s
. 

B
u
c
k
s
 C
C
 –
 u
p
 t
o
 1
0
 l
it
re
s
. 

 

T
y
re
s
 

M
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 
2
 c
a
r 
ty
re
s
 p
e
r 
tr
ip
. 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

N
o
tt
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

G
la
s
g
o
w
 C
C
 –
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

S
o
m
e
rs
e
t 
C
C
 –
 U
p
 t
o
 5
 t
y
re
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

W
a
rw
ic
k
s
h
ir
e
 –
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 £
5
.0
0
 p
e
r 
ty
re
. 

S
lo
u
g
h
 B
C
 –
 u
p
 t
o
 2
 c
a
r 
ty
re
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

B
u
c
k
s
 C
C
 –
 u
p
 t
o
 5
 c
a
r 
ty
re
s
. 

N
o
rf
o
lk
 C
C
 –
 u
p
 t
o
 5
 c
a
r 
ty
re
s
 p
e
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
. 

 

G
a
s
 B
o
tt
le
s
 

1
 g
a
s
 b
o
tt
le
 u
p
 t
o
 1
5
k
g
 p
e
r 
tr
ip
. 

A
ir
 c
y
lin
d
e
rs
 o
r 
S
C
U
B
A
 b
o
tt
le
s
 n
o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 a
c
c
e
p
t 
b
o
tt
le
s
 u
p
 t
o
 1
5
k
g
 i
n
 s
iz
e
, 
e
it
h
e
r 
p
ro
p
a
n
e
 o
r 
b
u
ta
n
e
. 

B
a
llo
o
n
 g
a
s
 b
o
tt
le
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 
O
th
e
r 
g
a
s
 b
o
tt
le
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 S
C
U
B
A
 d
iv
in
g
 b
o
tt
le
s
 o
r 

a
ir
 c
y
lin
d
e
rs
 a
re
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

B
u
c
k
s
 C
C
 –
 u
p
 t
o
 3
 g
a
s
 b
o
tt
le
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

 

F
ir
e
 E
x
ti
n
g
u
is
h
e
rs
 

M
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 
2
 p
e
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 s
iz
e
 o
n
ly
. 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 C
H
U
B
B
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 b
a
c
k
 t
h
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
e
x
ti
n
g
u
is
h
e
rs
 f
o
r 
a
 £
4
 

c
h
a
rg
e
 f
ro
m
 a
n
y
 p
re
m
is
e
. 
H
W
R
C
s
 w
ill
 o
n
ly
 a
c
c
e
p
t 
e
x
ti
n
g
u
is
h
e
rs
 i
f 
C
H
U
B
B
 

u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 c
o
lle
c
t 
th
e
m
. 

18



 

A
n
im
a
l 
a
n
d
 P
e
t 
W
a
s
te
 

O
n
ly
 f
ro
m
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
n
im
a
ls
. 

M
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 
2
 b
a
g
s
 p
e
r 
d
a
y
. 

 N
o
 l
iv
e
s
to
c
k
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 o
n
ly
 f
ro
m
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 a
n
im
a
ls
 w
it
h
 a
 m

a
x
 o
f 
2
 b
in
 l
in
e
rs
 p
e
r 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
p
e
r 
d
a
y
. 
W
a
s
te
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 d
o
u
b
le
 b
a
g
g
e
d
. 
W
a
s
te
 f
ro
m
 l
iv
e
s
to
c
k
, 

b
re
e
d
in
g
, 
b
o
a
rd
in
g
, 
s
ta
b
lin
g
 o
r 
e
x
h
ib
it
in
g
 o
f 
a
n
im
a
ls
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

B
u
c
k
in
g
h
a
m
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 A
n
im
a
l 
fa
e
c
e
s
, 
c
a
rc
a
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 b
e
d
d
in
g
 –
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 i
n
 a
 p
e
t 
w
a
s
te
 b
a
g
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f
re
e
 a
t 
H
W
R
C
. 

 

H
a
z
a
rd
o
u
s
 H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 

W
a
s
te
 

S
m
a
ll 
a
m
o
u
n
ts
 o
n
ly
, 
u
p
 t
o
 2
 l
it
re
s
 

p
e
r 
tr
ip
. 

 M
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 p
ri
o
r 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

W
R
G
  

i.
e
. 
p
re
-b
o
o
k
in
g
. 

 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 d
e
s
ig
n
a
te
d
 a
re
a
 a
n
y
 l
iq
u
id
s
 w
it
h
 h
a
z
a
rd
o
u
s
 c
o
n
te
n
t 

e
.g
. 
p
e
s
ti
c
id
e
s
, 
la
w
n
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
ts
, 
w
h
it
e
 s
p
ir
it
, 
v
a
rn
is
h
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
ti
fr
e
e
z
e
. 
S
u
c
h
 

it
e
m
s
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
n
 a
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 s
e
a
le
d
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
r.
 M
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 
5
 l
it
re
s
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 d
e
p
o
s
it
e
d
 p
e
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
 p
e
r 
m
o
n
th
. 

D
e
v
o
n
 C
C
 –
 u
p
 t
o
 5
 l
it
re
s
 o
n
ly
. 

 

F
lu
o
re
s
c
e
n
t 
tu
b
e
s
 &
 l
ig
h
t 

b
u
lb
s
 

U
p
 t
o
 3
 t
u
b
e
s
 o
r 
b
u
lb
s
 p
e
r 
tr
ip
 

D
e
v
o
n
 C
C
 –
 u
p
 t
o
 5
 t
u
b
e
s
 p
e
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 i
n
 a
 s
ix
 m

o
n
th
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 

 

N
o
t 
A
c
c
e
p
te
d
 M
a
te
ri
a
ls
 
 

 

A
ll 
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l/
tr
a
d
e
 

w
a
s
te
 

N
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 

 

F
ir
e
w
o
rk
s
, 
A
m
m
u
n
it
io
n
s
 

a
n
d
 F
la
re
s
 

N
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 

 

P
e
tr
o
l 

N
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

B
u
c
k
s
 C
C
 –
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

K
e
n
t 
C
C
 –
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

 

D
ie
s
e
l 

 
N
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 

H
a
m
p
s
h
ir
e
 C
C
 –
 n
o
t 
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

TO: JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD 
 22 SEPTEMBER 2009 
___________________________________________________________________________  
 

WORK PROGRAMME  
(Report by the Project Director) 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report proposes the establishment of a work programme for the Joint Waste 

Disposal Board.  
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Members approve the establishment of an annual Work Programme for  the 

Joint Waste Disposal Board. 
 
2.2 That, subject to any amendments they may wish to make, Members approve the 

appended list of proposed workstreams for 2009/10. 
 
 
3. SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Background 
 
3.1 The Joint Waste Disposal Board (JWDB) does not currently have a forward plan of 

issues it wishes to address over a set period in the future. 
 
3.2 Officers feel that such a forward plan, or Work Programme, would have benefits for both 

the Board and Officers. 
 

Proposal 
 
3.3 It is proposed that the JWDB agrees, each year at its Annual General Meeting, a Work 

Programme for the year ahead. 
 
3.4 The Work Programme will provide some structure to the year ahead, encouraging 

development and giving an auditable basis upon which to demonstrate how the 
partnership is progressing. 

 
3.5 The Work Programme should include important and/or emerging issues which have 

implications to the success of the council partnership - both directly and indirectly related 
to the joint waste PFI.  

 
3.6 These items should be covered in some depth at the JWDB Meeting and should involve 

some improvement to service, improvement in performance, financial savings or 
developmental progress on the part of the councils. 

  
3.7 Officers will propose a draft Work Programme and Members will have an opportunity to 

make amendments, including proposing new items, before it is agreed. 
 
3.8 The Work Programme will form a significant part of each JWDB Meeting. It is proposed, 

however, that time is always made available at the meetings for additional items and 
matters arising, which were not apparent at the AGM. 

Agenda Item 10

21



 

 

 
3.5 The proposed Work Programme is appended to this report. Subject to its amendment 

and approval it is proposed that it be adopted for the period between the AGM of the 
JWDB on September 22nd 2009 to the AGM of the JWDB in September 2010.  

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None 
 
CONTACTS FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
 
Mark Moon, Project Director  
0118 974 6315 
Mark.moon@wokingham.gov.uk 
 
Oliver Burt, Project Manager 
0118 9399990 
oliver.burt@reading.gov.uk 
 

22



 

 

JOINT WASTE DISPOSAL BOARD (22nd September 2009) 
 
WORK PROGRAMME - APPENDIX 1 
 
The proposed Work Programme includes both regular items, which should be covered at each 
meeting, and those which it is initially intended to investigate in depth only once during the year. 
Some of the latter items may of course, at the request of the Board, be revisited as appropriate. 
No date has been allocated to the items below, Members may wish to request an item be added 
to the agenda for a specific meeting. 
 
 
REGULAR ITEMS – for regular review at Joint Waste Disposal Meetings. 
 
 

• PFI Financial Review 

• Council Performance Review 

• Communications Review 

• Contract Monitoring Review 

• Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy Review 
 
 
SPECIFIC ITEMS 
 

• Food Waste 

• Charity Waste (including the WRG proposal in lieu of the Retail Function at Smallmead) 

• Mini-MRF at Longshot Lane 

• Public and Trade access to Household Waste Recycling Centre’s  

• Waste Minimisation and Education 

• Joint Waste Authority 

• Shared Services 

• Contamination of Mixed Dry Recyclables (MDR) 

• Joint Working Agreement (at AGM) 
 

 

 

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

25

Document is Restricted



26

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

27

By virtue of 
Regulation 21 of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.

Document is Restricted



30

This page is intentionally left blank



31

By virtue of 
Regulation 21 of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.

Document is Restricted



34

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

35

By virtue of 
Regulation 21 of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.

Document is Restricted



36

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the Joint Waste Disposal Board - 23 July 2009
	7 Project Update
	9 Waste Acceptance Policy
	JWDB - Waste Acceptance Policy Appendix

	10 Work Programme
	Reports Containing Exempt Information
	13 Smallmead MRF Proposal
	JWDB - MRF Proposal Appendix

	14 re3 Risk Register

